
 

PLANNING COMMISSION 

Tuesday, April 13, 2021 at 7:00 PM 
 

AGENDA 

1.      7:00 P.M. CALL TO ORDER & FLAG SALUTE  

2.      CONSENT AGENDA 

A. Planning Commission Minutes dated March 9, 2021 

3.      TOPICS FROM THE FLOOR (Not on Public Hearing Agenda): Limited to five minutes per topic  

4.      PUBLIC HEARING AGENDA (times are earliest start time) 

B. 7:00 p.m. Continued Deliberations for PT.1.21 - Schlumpberger (Public Hearing Closed) 

C. 7:30 p.m. Annexation at SW Intersection of Kavanagh Ave & Firway Lane - Comfort  

D. 7:45 p.m. Variance at 164 S 1st Street - Steve Pegram & Paula Sheeley 

5.      PLANNING DIRECTOR DECISIONS (previously e-mailed to the Commission) 

1. Temporary Use Permit at 175 Bowling Alley Lane – CCPOD, LLC 

2. Temporary Use Permit at 555 S Columbia River Hwy – Juana Delgado 

3. Temporary Use Permit at 2225 Gable Road – Brent Paintner 

6.      PLANNING DEPARTMENT ACTIVITY REPORT 

E. March Planning Department Report  

7.      FOR YOUR INFORMATION ITEMS  

8.      ADJOURNMENT 

NEXT REGULAR MEETING: May 11, 2021 

 VIRTUAL MEETING DETAILS 

Due to the COVID-19 pandemic and the Governor’s declared state of emergency (March 8, 2020) and 
subsequent Executive Order No. 20-16 (April 15, 2020), virtually via a phone-and-internet based 
application. 

Join Zoom 
Meeting:  https://zoom.us/j/91064850587pwd=R1I0eERNWmp1K1RlR0F5QU0rcWtj
UT09 
Meeting ID: 910 6485 0587 
Password: 753994 

Dial In: +1 253 215 8782 (Tacoma) 

Be a part of the vision…Get involved with your City…Volunteer for a City of St. Helens Board or Commission! 

For more information or for an application, stop by City Hall or call 503-366-8217. 

 

1



Planning Commission DRAFT Minutes – 3/9/21                                                                                                   Page 1 of 7 
 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION 

Tuesday, March 09, 2021 at 7:00 PM 
 

DRAFT MINUTES 
 
Members Present: 

 

Chair Cary 
Vice Chair Hubbard 
Commissioner Webster 
Commissioner Semling 
Commissioner Lawrence 
Commissioner Pugsley 
Commissioner Cavanaugh 

  

Members Absent: None 
  

Staff Present: City Planner Graichen 
Associate Planner Dimsho 
Community Development Admin Assistant Sullivan 
Councilor Birkle 

  

Others: Damian Hall 
Andrew Schlumpberger 
Lindsay Schlumpberger 
Ron Schlumpberger 
Tracey Hill 
Jerry Belcher 
Daniel Kearns 
Tim Ramis 
Al Petersen 
Robin Nunn 
Steve Toschi 

 

1.      7:00 P.M. CALL TO ORDER & FLAG SALUTE  

2.      CONSENT AGENDA 

A. Planning Commission Minutes dated February 9, 2021 
 

Motion: Upon Commissioner Semling’s motion to approve the minutes as written with a typographical 
error correction and Commissioner Webster’s second, the Planning Commission unanimously approved 
the Draft Minutes Dated February 9, 2021. [AYES: Commissioner Pugsley, Commissioner Webster, 
Commissioner Semling, Commissioner Lawrence, Commissioner Cavanaugh, Vice Chair Hubbard 
NAYS: None] 

3.      TOPICS FROM THE FLOOR (Not on Public Hearing Agenda): Limited to five minutes per topic 

There were no topics from the floor. 

4.      PUBLIC HEARING AGENDA (times are earliest start time) 

B. 7:00 p.m. Partition at 160 Belton Road – Andrew & Lindsay Schlumpberger 

2

Item A.



Planning Commission  DRAFT Minutes March 09, 2021 

 

Planning Commission DRAFT Minutes – 3/9/21                                                                                                   Page 2 of 7 
 

City Planner Graichen presented the staff report dated March 1, 2021.  He said this was a reboot of a 
two-parcel land division. It started at the administrative level in the year 2020 and worked its way up 
to the Oregon Land Use Board of Appeals (LUBA). He said they have adequate utilities available to the 
property through a water line and a septic STEP system. He showed where there are buffers between 
the property and the wetlands and said there was still adequate space to build and keep the wetland 
buffer in place. He mentioned the road is a dead-end public street and is less than 20-feet in width 
with a significant amount of parcels that access it.  He talked about the blind corner and that it was an 
important area to be able to see if anyone is coming. He talked about the benefits of having a turnout 
at the blind corner. He said to require a turnout, they would have to consider the Private Road 
Standard not the Public Road Standard. Because the access situation is different, it allows for them to 
potentially apply private road standards instead of public road standards.  He said for the original 
application, there was a drainfield easement and that the easement obstructed access to this parcel. 
That was the key basis behind the Commission’s denial of the original application. He said that 
easement no longer exists and so the application to LUBA was withdrawn and then this new application 
was applied for.  

Commissioner Webster asked if the driveway was a shared access to both parcels in the partition. 
Graichen said it could end up being that way when it is finished. He said there is a minimum ten-foot-
wide driveway for the new building.  

In Favor 

Hall, Damien. Applicant. Hall was called to speak. He is the attorney for the applicant. He mentioned 
that the applicant would like to separate their two-acre lot into two different one-acre lots with one 
single-family dwelling on each parcel. He said that the applicant proposed a few conditions of approval 
on their own, including limiting development to one single-family dwelling and executing a reasonable 
future street improvement. He mentioned the prior application and that there were several points of 
mutual agreement between all those who testified and the staff. Most importantly, the septic drain field 
easement no longer exists. He mentioned that the current application meets the criteria of base zone 
R10 standards. He said there are adequate public facilities available handle dividing the property. He 
said as far as the road and the improvements required, he mentioned the applicant was willing to make 
street improvements according to what the Planning Commission decided. He said the applicant is open 
to a 90-degree turnout based on the staff recommendation.  

Schumpberger, Andrew. Applicant. Schlumpberger was called to speak. He said he worked for the 
Fire Department for fifteen years and since the safety of Belton Road was brought up, he wanted to 
share some of his research. He had checked the Fire Department records and St. Helens Police records 
and he said there had been no documented accidents in the last 20 years on Belton Road. He said the 
Fire Department has no issues accessing any of the properties located on Belton Road. He also said 
they had two fire marshals come and check out the access for the proposed partition, and they did not 
mention any access issues. He said there would be three additional turnouts with an approval of the 
proposed Partition, as this was a requirement for approval. He said that would be a significant increase 
in safety measures for the road. He mentioned there are other streets in St. Helens that are much 
smaller with more accessing properties.  

Schlumpberger, Lindsay. Applicant. Schlumpberger was called to speak. She said that she had 
multiple neighbors who support the proposed Partition. She said they did not want to create any divide 
between them and their neighbors. She said they just want to be able to use their property to build a 
home for more privacy. She said with the new guidelines coming out in July for duplexes, they could 
build a second dwelling without the partition. She said, however, that they do not wish to overdevelop 
the private land. She said their intent was to have one single home and live as a family to maintain the 

3

Item A.



Planning Commission  DRAFT Minutes March 09, 2021 

 

Planning Commission DRAFT Minutes – 3/9/21                                                                                                   Page 3 of 7 
 

privacy of the neighborhood. She said they are willing to take on the extra expense of the road and 
street improvements to help improve the safety of their neighborhood.  

Schlumpberger, Ron. Schlumpberger was called to speak. He lives at 1400 Second Street in 
Columbia City. He talked about  Belton Road. He said the reason it was underdeveloped because of 
basalt rock. He said the streets are narrow, but that does not mean they are unsafe. He said the 
applicants have done everything they have been asked to do and are trying to do the right thing.  

Belcher, Jerry. Belcher was called to speak. He lives at 105 Belton Road. He supports the application. 
He said he has served on several Commissions in the City. He said they have lived here for over 29 
years. He said after partitioned, both parcels would be over one acre in size. He said he had concern 
about the safety of the road. He said the City has resurfaced the road and that the City does maintain 
it. He said the 90-degreeturn in the road is the major issue. He said there is a turnout at the end of the 
road and many large vehicles use it to get in and out, including ambulances, delivery drivers, trash 
trucks, etc. He has never heard of a vehicle-pedestrianaccident on the road. He said in the last month 
he has only met two vehicles on the road. He also said that traffic studies have shown that narrow 
streets reduce traffic incidents. He said those looking to leave the area, it is somewhat difficult if they 
meet a vehicle coming into the area. He said if there was a turnout there it would make that much 
easier. He also said he saw there was a hammerhead that was proposed, and he said that was a great 
way to give access to the Fire Department to access all the homes in the lower area of the street.  He 
felt if both the hammerhead and the turnout were included, he recommended approval of the 
application.  

Neutral 

No one spoke as neutral testimony. 

In Opposition 

Kearns, Daniel. Kearns was called to speak. He said he was a Land Use Attorney, and he represents 
a neighbor, Tracey Hill, who lives at 250 Belton Road. He said he submitted a new record and asked 
for the previous records from the first Partition to be included in these proceedings. He also asked that 
the record be left open for at least seven days to respond to any new evidence that might come in. He 
said when you create a lot it gives an entitlement to build a house. He said Belton Road is smaller than 
the skinny street standard. He said there is no evidence that there have been any issues with safety, 
but the standards are set to keep the streets safe. He mentioned the Commission was being asked to 
create a new lot with development rights, when there are already several underdeveloped lots in this 
area. He asked at what point would there be too many dwellings being served by this roadway. He said 
there is no way  the Commission can condition this application to bring Belton Road up to the street 
standard.  

Hill, Tracey. Hill was called to speak. She lives at 250 Belton Road. She mentioned that the applicant 
brought in heavy equipment to remove trees and vegetation without the City’s permission. She said 
they continue to ignore the rules and seem to feel entitled to do whatever they want. She said the 
applicant has intimidated people into agreeing with them. She said the applicant sued her about the 
drainfield easement and appealed the previous decision by the Planning Commission to the Land Use 
Board of Appeals. She said they offered her money to support the partition application. 

Rebuttal 

Hall, Damien. Applicant. Hall said the property is over two acres. He said it is in a zoned residential 
area. He said there are several limitations to what the City can do to stop development on  residential-
zoned property. He went over the criteria of approval that apply to partitions. He realizes Belton Road 
does not meet the street standard of the City Code, but that does not mean the partition should be 

4

Item A.



Planning Commission  DRAFT Minutes March 09, 2021 

 

Planning Commission DRAFT Minutes – 3/9/21                                                                                                   Page 4 of 7 
 

denied. He said this property does have adequate access to public utilities. He said the applicant has 
offered different solutions for road safety improvements. He said this application can be conditioned to 
meet standards.   

Graichen mentioned that the condition where the City would restrict the use to one dwelling could be 
an issue. Hall said if the Applicant is self-imposing this as a solution; it is a condition that can be used 
by the City if they choose.  

Tim Ramis, Land Use Attorney for the City, asked if the memorandum for a future improvements 
guarantee, a part of the applicant’s voluntary conditions, was what they were imposing for approval. If 
so, what would be the content of this guarantee? Hall said the future improvement guarantee was 
mentioned in the City code as something that could be accepted instead of street improvements if one 
or more of the following conditions existed. Hall said they believe the conditions that are mentioned 
here do exist. He said this means the Schlumpbergers would pay their fair share for any improvements 
that were made by the City. Graichen said the proposed turnout would meet the conditions for 
approval the way the application is written. He said that is if the Planning Commission did not impose 
any other conditions for approval for access.  

End of Oral Testimony 
 

There was a request to leave the record open for written testimony and for final written argument. As 
such, the public hearing will continue in written form. Graichen said the first period will be held open for 
seven days to receive written testimony. If there is written testimony received, there will be an additional 
seven days to responds to that testimony. At this point, the record would close.  
 
Then, the applicant may provide a final argument. The first period for response will end at 5 p.m. March 
16, 2021 and the second period of response will end at 5 p.m. March 23, 2021. The deadline for final 
written comment is 5 p.m. March 30, 2021. The applicant agreed. Deliberations were set for Tuesday, 
April 13, 2021 at 7:00 p.m.  

  C. 8:00 p.m. CPZA.1.21, 2021 Development Code Amendments – City of St. 
Helens 

City Planner Graichen presented the report dated March 1, 2021. He said the development code is how 
a municipality regulates development. It includes zoning, what you can do where, landscaping, etc. He 
said when adopting development code, there are processes you must go through. He said there is a 
process where you notify the  Oregon Department of Land Conservation and Development 35 days in 
advance of the first hearing to make sure we are following Oregon guidelines, etc. He said the 
development code amendments are to comply with House Bill 2001 and some miscellaneous 
housekeeping text amendments.  

House Bill 2001 is about advancing the missing middle. He said it is the area between a single-family 
dwellings and a large multi-family complex. He said being a “medium city” per House Bill 2001, they 
are mostly looking at duplexes.  

Graichen said they sent notice to all the properties this new House Bill would affect, about 4,000 
notices. He mentioned some of the areas for zoning where duplexes were not allowed or in areas 
where a Conditional Use Permit was required. Those restrictions would end with this new House Bill.  

Graichen said City Council also wanted to allow two detached units anywhere duplexes will be allowed. 
Given this desire, he added distance standards between structures on the same lot. The Commission 
discussed the tiered system for these standards based on zoning. He said the maximum lot coverage is 
proposed to change from 35 percent to 40 percent for all residential zones except Apartment 
Residential, which is already more. He said they were changing the minimum lot size and dimensions 

5

Item A.



Planning Commission  DRAFT Minutes March 09, 2021 

 

Planning Commission DRAFT Minutes – 3/9/21                                                                                                   Page 5 of 7 
 

for the Apartment Residential zone to be themid-point between what is required for duplexes now and 
what is required for detached single-family dwellings.  

He said when looking at two detached dwellings, they must consider corner lots too. He said they 
relooked at the rules that allows projections into required yards. He talked about the allowance of 
covered porches. He also mentioned chimneys, eaves and how they were allowed on all sides and said 
those were not changing. He said they are changing the flanking street side where currently an 
uncovered porch was allowed. They are going to make it a requirement for a covered porch. He also 
mentioned stairs and landings.  

He brought up the issue of parking. He said currently the standards require two spaces per dwelling 
unit,which is four spaces for a duplex. He said with the new code change, they are restricted to 
requiring a maximum of two parking spots for duplexes. He said currently they do not allow tandem 
parking, but they are considering if tandem parking should be allowed.  

He talked about the new lot sizes and how they relate to on-street parking. He said with a 40-foot wide 
lot, the standard 18-foot driveway still provides room for a car to park on the street. With narrower 
lots, this becomes a problem. He asked the Commission to consider tandem parking which would 
require a minimum of 10-foot driveway width which would provide more room for on-street parking 
and less driveway interruption for those using the sidewalks.   

He spoke about street hierarchy. He said there are different street classifications and different 
standards. One of the standards that differentiates street types is the right-of-way width. He said the 
reason they have those widths are to accommodate certain street cross sections. He showed some 
standards between two differing SkinnyStreet standards. One standard is for a 26-foot pavement 
standard to accommodate a 20-foot street for two-way traffic and a six-foot wide on-street parking. 
There is also a 20-foot paved width without on-street parking. The proposal is to get rid of the 20-foot 
standard all together and change the 26-foot to 28-foot width to accommodate a better on street 
parking area.  

He spoke about driveways and the current standards. He said they do not currently allow two 
driveways, but with the new duplex rule, are considering two driveways as option. He said the idea is 
to allow for more off-street parking. He said for a corner lot you can currently have two driveways if 
there is a duplex being built, but the new code will allow for more opportunities for two driveways.  

He mentioned there were a few other small updates to the Development Code. He said the Building 
Code changed some of their rules for signs which triggered the need to alter the sign code slightly.  He 
said in RV parks there is a limit of 30 days for a maximum stay, but because of State law they cannot 
impose a maximum stay.. He said in subdivisions, they used to reserve strips of land to  control , but 
this has been replaced with language on the plat. He also said there was some clarification about 
sensitive lands and land partitions in subdivisions as well. He talked about how the Houlton Busines 
District and Riverfront District zones have a fee in lieu of off-street parking requirements, but it has 
never been used and is not likely to be used in the future. He also said there is a Scenic Resource 
Review provision  and they are proposing to add a minor area to that: River Way.  

He talked about other methods for affordability for the missing middle. He said they could recommend 
different option such as waiving system development charges, a variety of property tax exemptions, or 
even assessing a construction tax. He said currently they do offer system development fee payment 
plans. He also said system development charges are based on meter size, so if two units share a 
meter, this could  reduce fees.  

Commissioner Puglsey asked about how would no on-street parking on Skinny Strees would be 
enforced or implemented. Graichen mentioned that they were doing away with the 20-foot standard 

6

Item A.



Planning Commission  DRAFT Minutes March 09, 2021 

 

Planning Commission DRAFT Minutes – 3/9/21                                                                                                   Page 6 of 7 
 

altogether because of the difficulty of enforcement.Typically there is “No Parking” signage or a yellow 
painted curb. He said as far as enforcement, if it is posted, the police can enforce it. He said that 
because the police are so busy with other things, it would likely only be enforced on a complaint basis.  

Commissioner Pugsley also asked about the encroachments and asked if decks and steps were 
considered the same. Graichen said they were not considered the same. He mentioned that on the 
perimeter the covered or open porch was allowed, with restrictions on the flanking side. He said-
between buildings, it was proposed to be strictly stairs and landings.  

Commissioner Pugsley also shared concern about destruction of historic homes for new duplexes. She 
asked if old Covenanst, Conditions, and Restrictions (CC&Rs) restrict duplexes, could the nationally 
registered Historic District also restrict duplexes? Graichen said the Historic District is a designation by 
the Federal Government. It is not a regulatory overlay. Commissioner Pugsley asked if someone 
proposed to add something to a lot that was considered historic, would the Historic Landmarks 
Committee have the opportunity to review that proposal?Graichen said no they would not. He said only 
if it was a locally designated andmark, they could.  

Commissioner Semling asked about driveways on corner lots and if the distance to the corner would 
change or stay the same. Graichen said they would stay the same. Commissioner Semling mentioned 
that most garages are not used for parking, they are used for storage. She asked how this would 
impact the proposed tandem parking changes. . She was curious how they would be able to enforce 
that. Graichen said this was a good argument for not allowing tandem parking, but requiring the status 
quo  side-by-side parking.  

Chair Cary asked about the standards for sheds that do not meet the size requirements for permit. 
Graichen said that if the shed is too small to require a permit, then the standard yard requirements 
along the perimeter would not apply, but there is a rule that says no portion of the shed is supposed to 
be closer than three feet to a property line. He said that same principle would apply to the building 
separation rule.  

 

In Favor 

No one spoke in favor. 

Neutral 

Toschi, Steve. Toschi was called to speak. He lives at 215 River Street. He said that wider streets 
result in less congested development. He said there tends to be a free flow of neighborhoods. He said 
tandem parking is a way to develop narrower buildings and it does work. He felt the Scenic Resource 
Review is a good ordinance to keep around but has presented some challenges for those who have 
wanted to develop on streets with those restrictions.  

In Opposition 

Petersen, Al. Peterson was called to speak. He has an office at 101 St. Helens Street. He expressed 
concern about the definition of duplexes and how it was being defined in the Development Code. He 
said the definition was not changing with the amendments. He said he sent the Commission a couple 
definition changes for consideration. He also did not agree with adding an additional street to the 
Scenic Resource Review. He feels the entire chapter in the code for Scenic Resource Review should be 
eliminated. He does not think the density of development should be changed on Skinny Streets.  

Nunn, Robin. Nunn was called to speak. She lives at 100 Belton Road. She mentioned the single car 
garage is used more for storage or extra living space. She also said the tandem parking was not a good 

7

Item A.



Planning Commission  DRAFT Minutes March 09, 2021 

 

Planning Commission DRAFT Minutes – 3/9/21                                                                                                   Page 7 of 7 
 

idea, because every time you must move a vehicle, it creates more problems. She said she was 
concerned about the on-street parking and the hazard it creates for those who are driving. She felt the 
tandem parking made for less available parking. She was concerned about the extra housing and how 
it might create problems in the future for parking. She was especially concerned about adding more 
houses and development on roads that are considered skinny streets.  

End of Oral Testimony 

There were no requests to continue the hearing or leave the record open.  

Close of Public Hearing & Record 

The applicant waived the opportunity to submit final written argument after the close of the record.  

Deliberations  

Graichen mentioned that he agreed that the Planning Department should look at the multi-family 
dwelling development code. He said his approach to reviewing development code is thorough and 
detailed. He expressed that the Planning Department was not lazy in their review of this code, wanted 
to put out a quality product and stay on schedule. He also clarified that in legislative actions, there 
were a few things that had already happened that prevent them from adding things that are somewhat 
alien to the amendments. He said one is the City Council must approve the concept before moving 
forward with the adoption process. The staff is also required to send their amendments to the State of 
Oregon 35 days before the first hearing. He said if they start adding significant changes this late in the 
game, it causes issues.  

There was a small discussion about each item to add to the recommendation. There was also a small 
discussion about affordable housing.  
 

Motion: Upon Commissioner Pugsley’s motion and Commissioner Webster’s second, the Planning 
Commission unanimously recommended approval of the Development Code amendments to the City 
Council with slight modifications as discussed. Vice Chair Hubbard did not vote due to his absence from 
this portion of the meeting. [Ayes: Commissioner Semling, Commissioner Webster, Commissioner 
Lawrence, Commissioner Pugsley, Commissioner Cavanaugh; Nays: None] 

5.      PLANNING DEPARTMENT ACTIVITY REPORT 

F. February Planning Department Report  

6.      FOR YOUR INFORMATION ITEMS  

Dimsho mentioned the upcoming deadline for the ethics forms that needed to be submitted.  

NEXT REGULAR MEETING:  April 13, 2021 

 

There being no further business before the Planning Commission, the meeting was adjourned 11:41 
p.m. 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Christina Sullivan 
Community Development Administrative Assistant   

 

8

Item A.



9

Item B.



10

Item B.



11

Item B.



12

Item B.



13

Item B.



14

Item B.



15

Item B.



16

Item B.



17

Item B.



18

Item B.



19

Item B.



20

Item B.



21

Item C.



22

Item C.



23

Item C.



24

Item C.



25

Item C.



26

Item C.



27

Item C.



28

Item C.



29

Item C.



30

Item C.



31

Item C.



32

Item C.



33

Item D.



34

Item D.



35

Item D.



36

Item D.



37

Item D.



38

Item D.



39

Item D.



40

Item D.



41

Item D.



42

Item D.



43

Item D.



44

Item D.



45

Item D.



1 
 

CITY OF ST. HELENS PLANNING DEPARTMENT ACTIVITY REPORT 
 
 To:  City Council  Date: 3.30.2021 
 From: Jacob A. Graichen, AICP, City Planner 
 cc:  Planning Commission 
 
 
 
 
PLANNING ADMINISTRATION—PREAPPLICATIONS MEETINGS 
 
Conducted a pre-application meeting for a potential drive through restaurant for the remaining 
commercial lot of the Matzen Subdivision (where the old mobile home park used to be) by 
Legacy and Grocery Outlet (under construction).  This is a known fast-food chain, but one not 
currently (or previously) in St. Helens or Scappoose.  Hint, it is a chicken place. 
 
Attended a Columbia County pre-application meeting for a proposal to divide property with 
several existing dwellings within St. Helens’ Urban Growth Area.  The property is along 
Bachelor Flat Road, a bit west of Ross Road and about half is within the Urban Growth 
Boundary and the other half out. 
 
 
PLANNING ADMINISTRATION—MISC. 
 
Continue to work on the code amendments, largely related to HB2001.  Following the Planning 
Commission hearing this month, various documents were updated based on the Commission’s 
hearing and technicalities of law as discussed with DLCD and the Fair Housing Council of 
Oregon in preparation for the public hearing with the Council on April 7, 2021.  The proposes 
text amendment and summary by chapter documents have been updated on the 2021 
Development Code Amendments web page: 
 
https://www.sthelensoregon.gov/planning/page/2021-development-code-amendments  
 
Assisted our Engineering Department with their Sewer master planning efforts.  Latest 
involvement has been growth assumptions.  Like most plans, these have a 20-year outlook. 
 
Prepared legal descriptions and maps for Oregon Department of Revenue preliminary review for 
the first two annexations of 2021.  Public hearings to be scheduled later this year. 
 
Completed the required biannual harassment training; online class this time due to COVID-19. 
 
 
DEVELOPMENT CODE ENFORCEMENT 
 
Last month (maybe late January) some fill was placed next to a home close to downtown to 
expand parking for the home.  However, the lot with the fill is separate from the home lot and 
not zoned residential, it is zoned Riverfront District.  Have been in contact with the owner and 
how to resolve the issue.  Finally, sent correspondence on the matter on March 25, 2021.   

This report does not indicate all current planning activities over the past report period.  These are tasks, processing and administration of the Development Code 
which are a weekly if not daily responsibility.  The Planning Commission agenda, available on the City’s website, is a good indicator of current planning 
activities.  The number of building permits issued is another good indicator as many require Development Code review prior to Building Official review. 

46

Item E.

https://www.sthelensoregon.gov/planning/page/2021-development-code-amendments


2 
 

 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION (& acting HISTORIC LANDMARKS COMMISSION) 
 
March 9, 2021 meeting (outcome): The public hearing was closed for the first public hearing of 
the night—a 2-parcel land partition on Belton Road—but the record was left open for additional 
written testimony.  Deliberations on this matter scheduled for the April meeting. 
 
The other public hearing was for the 2021 code amendments, which the Commission 
recommends approval to the Council with some minor changes and recommendations as to 
parking flexibility options.  
 
April 13, 2021 meeting (upcoming): Deliberations will continue for the Belton Road partition 
public hearing that occurs at the March 9, 2021 meeting.  There will be two additional public 
hearings: one for an annexation of property along Kavanagh Avenue proposed to be developed 
as an RV park and a second for a yard reduction Variance along the 100 block of S. 1st Street.  
 
 
GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEMS (GIS) 
 
Annual software maintenance for the Panning and Engineering Departments. 
 
 
ST. HELENS INDUSTRIAL BUSINESS PARK PROPERTY 
 
Later this week, both Associate Planner Dimsho and I are scheduled to talk with PGE’s planner 
about a potential new substation and the recently adopted pacelization plan for the site.  We’ve 
kept PGE aware of the parcelization plan and even dedicated a parcel for the substation.  Will 
know more about their concerns soon. 
 
 
MILLARD ROAD PROPERTY 
 
Associate Planner Dimsho and I have been working with the City Administrator on a Request for 
Proposal for developers for the Millard Road property.  Anticipate seeking Council approval at 
one of the April meetings.  
 
 
DALTON LAKE 
 
The city continues to pursue purchase.  We must use an ODOT approved appraiser as part of the 
process.  The attached summary was requested by the appraiser as part of that effort.  This is 
good information for you as we look ahead at acquisition and eventual annexation. 
 
 
ASSOCIATE PLANNER—In addition to routine tasks, the Associate Planner has been working on: 
See attached. 

47

Item E.



1 of 1 

 CITY OF ST. HELENS PLANNING DEPARTMENT 

 M E M O R A N D U M 
 

TO: John Walsh, City Administrator 
FROM: Jacob A. Graichen, AICP, City Planner 
RE: ODOT Surplus - Dalton Lake Property - #: PM205A-001 
DATE: March 11, 2021 
 

 
The property is outside of city limits, but with the St. Helens Urban Growth Boundary and adjacent to St. 
Helens’ municipal boundary on three sides (west, south, and east).  It is eligible for annexation to St. Helens. 
 
According to the Columbia County Web Maps http://65.122.151.216/geomoose2/ it is currently zoned 
Columbia County’s Primary Forest PF-80.  Upon annexation, the city’s zoning would apply. 
 
The St. Helens Comprehensive Plan designates the property as Urban Open Space, UOS.  This is the only 
property within the St. Helens Urban Growth Area with this designation. 
 
Per SHMC 19.12.120(2)(c):  
 

Upon annexation to the city, zone Dalton Lake as open space.  “Open space” is not a current zoning 
district and may need to be created in conjunction with annexation. 

 
Chapter 17.44 SHMC identifies several categories of sensitive lands.  Per SHMC 17.44.010(1)(h): 
 

(1) Sensitive lands are lands potentially unsuitable for development because of their location 
within: 

 
(h) Open space/open space design review areas shown on the comprehensive plan map. 

 
Thus, the City has planned this property as a sensitive land open space.  In addition to the open space 
designation, the site has other sensitive lands thereon, including: 
 

• The site abuts the Columbia River with 75’ upland protection zone* required per Chapter 17.40 
SHMC. 

• Wetland D-16, otherwise known as Dalton Lake, makes up the majority of this site and includes a 75’ 
upland protection zone* required per Chapter 17.40 SHMC. 

• The City’s wetland inventory also identified Wetland D-17 between the Columbia River and Dalton 
Lake.  Like Dalton Lake itself, D-17 includes a 75’ upland protection zone*. 

• A majority of the site is included in an “area of special flood hazard” more commonly referred to as 
the 100 year floodplain as identified on FEMA FIRM Panel 41009C0345D. 

 
 * In St. Helens, upland protection zones are protected like wetland or riparian areas.  
 
Given substantial sensitive land constraints as described, the highest and best uses of this property are 
limited.  Generally, nature park with limited development such as trails and low impact amenities (trails, 
benches, bird watching blinds), and/or nature conservancy are anticipated. 
 
The site also provides a nonvehicular link between St. Helens and Columbia City to the north and an 
alternate route for emergency response as all of St. Helens’ railroad crossings are at grade, whereas Columbia 
City has a crossing with a road overpass, which could be valuable if a train event blocks all St. Helens railroad 
crossings which would create a wall dividing the St. Helens in half. 

48

Item E.

http://65.122.151.216/geomoose2/


49

Item E.



50

Item E.



From: Jennifer Dimsho
To: Jacob Graichen
Subject: March Planning Department Report
Date: Friday, March 26, 2021 10:59:14 AM

Here are my additions to the March Planning Department Report.
GRANTS

1. OPRD  - Local Government Grant – Campbell Park Improvements ($187k) includes
replacement of four existing tennis courts and two basketball courts with two tennis flex
courts and one flex sport court, adds a picnic viewing area, improves natural stormwater
facilities, expands parking, and improves ADA access. Grant deadline is October 2021. Soil
conditions are requiring a different approach to ensure that the concrete pad will not
settle. Sue is working with a Geotech and a contractor to apply a concrete amendment to
the stabilize the soil. Anticipated retention area will be planted in October after SBWC
native plant sale on October 9.

2. CDBG- Columbia Pacific Food Bank Project – Selected contractor for $1.6 million bid.
Contract documents signed on 01/04/21. Construction to begin by JH Kelly to begin in
March. Received 1-year time extension and budget modification to accommodate the
overage of the estimated construction cost. Received mechanical/plumbing permits.
Processed first contract payment to JH Kelly. Project to be completed by December 2021.

3. Safe Routes to School - Columbia Blvd. Sidewalk Project – Construction timeline
provided by David Evans, who is working through design/engineering process. Worked
through change to schedule to allow an additional year for bidding the project to allow
the County to replace a culvert which collapsed in 2020 during a heavy rainstorm. New
schedule has bidding of the project in January 2022, with construction occurring Summer
2022.

4. Business Oregon – Infrastructure Finance Authority – Application for a low-interest loan
to fund the streets, utilities, and Riverwalk on the Riverfront property. Resolution to apply
approved by Council on 3/17. Submitted a full application in early March for board
approval in June 2021.

5. Oregon Watershed Enhancement Board (OWEB) – Awarded grant (approximately $12k)
to the Scappoose Bay Watershed Council in a partnership with the City for natural

enhancements of the 5th Street trail and Nob Hill Nature Park.  2nd Meeting on 2/2 to
discuss grant timeline and scope of work. Continued tracking all in-kind contributions
from the City on this effort.

6. OPRD – Local Government Grant Program – 500k request submitted back in May 2020
for Riverwalk construction. Our project was recommended for approval for 338k! Less
than 30% of the projects were successful and our project was right at the cut off line,
which is why we were awarded less than our request. Grant agreements are being drafted
by the state to be presented to Council for authorization as soon as they are complete.  

MISC

7. Bennett Building  (Water Department/ UB) – Site visit/measurements on 01/08/21 for
Phase I work which includes all new window replacement designed by Arciform and
fabricated/installed by Versatile Wood Products. Selected black high gloss paint color for

51

Item E.

mailto:jdimsho@ci.st-helens.or.us
mailto:jacob@ci.st-helens.or.us


the wooden windows. Received building Permit. Windows anticipated to be delivered and
installed late April/early May.

8. Riverwalk Design/Engineering Consulting Services - Contract negotiation authorized by
Council on 1/20/21. Contract negotiation meetings with Mayer Reed to finalize scope and
budget on 1/21, 2/5, 2/11, 2/18, and 2/24. Contract approved by City Council on 3/3.
Reviewed press releases for Riverwalk and Streets projects which went out consecutively.
Project work to be kicked off in April.

9. Millard Road City-Owned Property Request for Proposals -  Working with EcoNorthwest
to prepare a scope of work for them to assist drafting an RFP and assist with solicitation of
developers who want to submit a development proposal for the property. Kicked off
project on 2/12. Council reviewed introductory presentation to the project, provided
input regarding goals to EcoNW on 3/3. Review and compiled City comments to draft RFP
on 3/26. Anticipated releasing RFP in April after Council approves final draft.

10. Waterfront Video Project – Provided guidance/support to producer who will assist in
creating a waterfront redevelopment video for the City of St. Helens to use to narrate the
story for the public and to solicit interest from developers.

11. Urban Renewal Agency – Prepared for URA Budget adoption meetings (4/27) and the 1st

URA meeting in 2021 (5/5).
12. Job Description for New Title – Preparing/reviewing new title and job description for

Associate Planner – Community Development Project Manager
 
Jenny Dimsho, AICP
Associate Planner
City of St. Helens
(503) 366-8207
jdimsho@ci.st-helens.or.us
 

52

Item E.

mailto:jdimsho@ci.st-helens.or.us

	Top
	Item A.	March Minutes
	030921 PC Minutes DRAFT

	Item B.	Deliberations - Schlumpberger
	PT.1.21 Schlumpberger Memorandum

	Item C.	Annexation - Comfort
	A.1.20 COMFORT STAFF REPORT

	Item D.	Variance - Pegram & Sheeley
	V.1.21 PEGRAM &amp; SHEELEY STAFF REPORT

	Item E.	March Planning Department Report
	03MAR2021 Planning Dept Rept

	Bottom

